
Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 

Thursday, December 12, 2019 - 8:00 A.M. 
Zoofari Conference Center 

9715 West Bluemound Road 

MINUTES 

PRESENT: *Robert Curry, Michael Davis, Kathie Eilers, *Walter Lanier, Jon Lehrmann, 
Thomas Lutzow, Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, James Stevens, and 
Brenda Wesley 

EXCUSED: Rachel Forman, Sheri Johnson, and Duncan Shrout 

*Board Members Robert Curry and Walter Lanier were not present at the time the roll was
called but joined the meeting shortly thereafter.

SCHEDULED ITEMS: 

1. Welcome. 

Chairman Lutzow greeted Board Members and welcomed everyone to the December 12, 
2019, Mental Health Board meeting. 

2. Approval of the Minutes from the October 24, 2019, Milwaukee County Mental Health 
Board Meeting. 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Minutes from the October 24, 2019, 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Meeting.  7-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Wesley) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, and 

Wesley – 7 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: Curry and Lanier - 2 

3. Department of Administrative Services Quarterly Update on the State of Milwaukee 
County’s Interests and Matters Related to the Behavioral Health Division (BHD). 

Joseph Lamers, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy, and Budget (PSB), Department 
of Administrative Services 

Mr. Lamers stated the Milwaukee County 2020 Budget was adopted on November 12, 
2019, and included $301 million in tax levy.  The Behavioral Health Division’s share of that 

3



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 2 of 11 

tax levy is $55.9 million.  The County’s overall budget saw a budget gap of approximately 
$20 million.  There were a couple of changes made to BHD’s budget compared to the 2020 
Budget adopted by the Mental Health Board.  Those changes include the county-wide 1% 
Cost of Living wage Adjustment (COLA), which requires the Mental Health Board’s 
approval, and a transfer of approximately $2 million in Information Technology (IT) central 
spending costs. 

Mr. Lamers also provided the Board with a status update on the Fair Deal for Milwaukee.  
There has been a proposal advanced in both the Senate and State Assembly for a 1% 
sales tax for Milwaukee County.  Under the initial proposal, it will be distributed throughout 
the County and its municipalities and provides for some property tax relief.  If approved, it 
would be presented in the form of a referendum. 

Questions and comments ensued at length. 

4. Mental Health Board Membership and Terms. 

Schinika Fitch, Director of Community Relations, County Executive’s Office 

Ms. Fitch provided the Board with an update on where Board Members are within their 
terms and terms expiring in 2020.  She requested the County Executive’s Office be notified 
if any Board Members with expiring terms do not intend to continue their service to allow 
the proper vetting of potential replacements.  She detailed the process of appointment, 
removal, and length of service as described and governed by State Statute. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

5. Corporation Counsel Report on Behavioral Health Division Cross Charges. 

Anne Kearney, Deputy, Office of Corporation Counsel 

Ms. Kearney explained the overall concept of cross charging in which efficiency and cost 
are key factors to keeping department expenditures lower as opposed to using outside 
resources.  Corporation Counsel services were described along with the makeup of their 
staff.  Information was also provided on how cross charges are actually calculated.  
Charges for the Behavioral Health Division (BHD) have remained consistent over the last 
four years.  An additional slide was circulated reflecting BHD’s specific cross charge 
calculations. 

Questions and comments ensued. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 3 of 11 

6. Administrative Update. 

Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 

Mr. Lappen highlighted key activities and issues related to BHD operations.  He discussed 
community healthcare partnerships (Attachments A and B); the recertification survey for 
adult and child inpatient and crisis services, which resulted in no citations and a two-year 
recertification through October 31, 2021; psychiatric crisis redesign efforts and 
reimbursement from the State related to crisis services; and provided an update on Oxford 
House. 

For the Board’s information, Mr. Lappen referenced the Kane Communications Update 
(Attachment C), which is attached to the report. 

Chairman Lutzow informed the Board the Executive Committee directed Mr. Lappen to draft 
a letter from the Mental Health Board collectively to State authorities in the form of a 
complaint, with the assistance of the expert consultant.  The document should not dismiss 
but accept the responsibility BHD has to correct deficiencies and should acknowledge the 
fact that BHD has already entered into a Systems Improvement Agreement.  However, 
concern over the manner in which the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services 
conducted their audit should not be diminished. 

Chairman Lutzow also stated in the anticipation of the forthcoming County administration 
change, there is a growing need to formally put in writing the strategic plan of the Mental 
Health Board to inform the public of the direction the Board is taking the community.  As part 
of the implementation of a strategic plan for the Board, there will be discussions regarding 
an amendment to the Bylaws for the establishment of a governance committee whose 
elements of purview will include the Board’s functionality, governance, and authority within 
the County as an organization.  The amendment is expected to be brought before the Board 
at February 2020 meeting. 

7. Mental Health Board Finance Committee Professional Services Contracts 
Recommendations. 

Jennifer Bergersen, Chief of Operations, Behavioral Health Division 

 2020 Contracts
 Critical Management Solutions
 Barrins Consulting and Associates
 Kane Communications
 Evaluation Research Services
 Perceptivity, LLC

Ms. Bergersen stated Professional Services Contracts focus on facility-based programming, 
supports functions that are critical to patient care, and are necessary to maintain hospital 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 4 of 11 

and crisis services licensure.  An overview was presented on all services provided.  The 
Board’s attention was drawn to three contracts in particular. 

Critical Management Solutions was identified and awarded a contract as a result of the 
competitive bid process.  This consulting company’s expertise is performing root-cause gap 
analyses.  A plan will then be developed in accordance with the Behavioral Health Division’s 
(BHD) Systems Improvement Agreement (SIA) as it relates to the hospital.  The contract 
amount reflected represents a maximum projection.  Consideration of the contract is being 
sought during the December meeting cycle in order to initiate services beginning in January.  
Additional costs could be incurred upon completion of the analysis due to the identification of 
recommendations.  The funds to cover these costs will be allocated through BHD’s reserve 
account. 

Barrins Consulting and Associates was also identified and awarded a contract as a result of 
the competitive bid process for a full-time compliance consultant for ongoing monitoring as it 
relates to the SIA.  The contract amount reflected represents a maximum projection.  Staff is 
currently working on the contract and in the process of completing the scope of work.  The 
funds to cover these costs will be allocated through BHD’s reserve account. 

The Perceptivity, LLC, contract, was approved by the Board in October.  The report 
submitted, however, failed to indicate the contract was a single source award due to the 
need to expedite the community engagement efforts related to the Psychiatric Crisis 
Redesign initiative.  The Board will need to take separate action and move for 
reconsideration of this contract. 

The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend 
RECONSIDERATION and APPROVAL of the Perceptivity, LLC, Professional Services 
Contract and APPROVAL of the balance of 2019 Contract Amendments and 2020 Contracts 
delineated in the corresponding report. 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Reconsider the Perceptivity, LLC, Contract Delineated in 
the Corresponding Report Acknowledging the Award was Single 
Sourced.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES: Curry, Davis, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens and 

Wesley - 9 
NOES: 0 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the Perceptivity, LLC, Contract Delineated in the 
Corresponding Report.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Neubauer) 
AYES: Curry, Davis, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens and 

Wesley - 9 
NOES: 0 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 5 of 11 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the Balance of 2019 Professional Services  
Contract Amendments and 2020 Contracts Delineated in the 
Corresponding Report.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Eilers) 
AYES: Curry, Davis, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, and 

Wesley – 9 
NOES: 0 

8. Mental Health Board Finance Committee Purchase-of-Service Contracts 
Recommendation. 

Amy Lorenz, Deputy Administrator, Community Access to Recovery Services (CARS), 
Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 
Brian McBride, Director, Children’s Community Services and Wraparound Milwaukee, BHD 

Purchase-of-Service Contracts for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services 
and Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing 
the various adult and children program contracts and amendments. 

As reflected, 2019 contracts for the Community Access Points are extended until 
March 31, 2020, as BHD continues to work on the previously posted Request for Proposals 
(RFP).  Appeals were filed and requires specific processes.  Once the appeal process is 
complete, determinations will be made related to awarding 2020 contracts for these 
services. 

The La Causa, Inc., contract for the Community Linkages and Stabilization Program 
(CLASP) is extended through January 31, 2020.  The report narrative reflects January 1, 
2020, which is an error.  The term of the contract is short because an RFP was done for 
CLASP services, and Wisconsin Community Services won the bid for the 2020 contract.  
The extension with La Causa will allow time to transition clients. 

The 2019 contract awarded to Family Strong, LLC, has been terminated based on quality 
and fiscal concerns.  The funds requested with this contract will be used to pay remaining 
invoices for services provided. 

The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend 
approval of the 2019 Purchase-of-Service Contract Amendments and 2020 Contracts 
delineated in the corresponding report. 

Board Member Wesley requested separate action be taken on Wisconsin Community 
Services, Inc., contracts. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 6 of 11 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the FOUR Wisconsin Community Services, Inc., 
Contracts Delineated in the Corresponding Report.  8-0-1 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES: Curry, Davis, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, and Stevens - 8 
NOES: 0 
ABSTENTIONS: Wesley - 1 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the La Causa, Inc., Community Linkages and 
Stabilization Program Contract Amendment through 
January 31, 2020.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES: Curry, Davis, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 

and Wesley – 9 
NOES: 0 
ABSTENTIONS: 0 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the Balance of 2019 Purchase-of-Service  
Contract Amendments and 2020 Contracts Delineated in the 
Corresponding Report.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES: Curry, Davis, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 

and Wesley – 9 
NOES: 0 
ABSTENTIONS: 0 

9. Mental Health Board Finance Committee Fee-for-Service Agreements 
Recommendation 

Amy Lorenz, Deputy Administrator, Community Access to Recovery Services (CARS), 
Behavioral Health Division (BHD) 
Brian McBride, Director, Children’s Community Services and Wraparound Milwaukee, BHD 

Fee-for-Service Agreements for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental Health Services and 
Substance Use Disorder Services were reviewed.  An overview was provided detailing the 
program agreements, which provide a broad range of support services to adults and children 
with serious emotional disturbances. 

The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend 
approval of the 2019 Fee-for-Service Agreement Amendments and 2020 Agreements 
delineated in the corresponding report. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 7 of 11 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Approve the 2019 Fee-for-Service Agreement  
Amendments and 2020 Agreements Delineated in the 
Corresponding Report.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Davis) 
AYES: Curry, Davis, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 

and Wesley - 9 
NOES: 0 

10.  2020 1% Cost of Living Adjustment (COLA). 

Matt Fortman, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services 

Mr. Fortman informed the Board under normal circumstances, this Body and/or any of its 
respective Committees would not be required to approve a salary recommendation.  
However, through the 2020 Milwaukee County Budget process, the County Board approved 
Amendment 1A011, which states employees will receive a 1% pay increase.  The County 
Board specifically requires the Mental Health Board’s approval as a precondition to 
accessing these funds.  With a recommendation to approve, the Behavioral Health Division 
(BHD) will transfer funds from the non-departmental budget to BHD salary accounts. 

The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend 
approval of the 1% pay increase for BHD employees. 

MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Approve the 1% Pay Increase for Department of 
Health and Human Services Behavioral Health Division   
Employees as Specified and Directed by Milwaukee County 2020 
Budget Amendment 1A011.  9-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES: Curry, Davis, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 

and Wesley - 9 
NOES: 0 

The Board broke at 10:05 a.m. and reconvened at approximately 10:20 a.m.  The roll call 
was taken, and all Board Members were present. 

11.  Mental Health Board Finance Committee Update. 

Matt Fortman, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services 

Vice-Chairwoman Perez, Chairwoman of the Finance Committee, reviewed topics 
addressed at the Finance Committee’s quarterly meeting.  Mr. Fortman discussed the 2019 
financial reporting package and third quarter dashboard, crisis services reimbursement, fund 
transfers, reserve funds, and the 2021 Budget timeline and schedule. 

Chairman Lutzow questioned the actuarial soundness of Wraparound rates.  Mr. McBride 
stated as part of other programming, enrollment numbers were reviewed from system 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 8 of 11 

partners and referral sources.  Wraparound is seeing an uptick in referrals and enrollments.  
Part of the success of the overall program, in limiting out-of-home placements, has triggered 
a review of the fiscal aspect as well. The practice of keeping kids in home and in the 
community has had an impact on the fiscal side.  Generally, the high utilizers of service 
somewhat average out the low utilizers of service. 

Comprehensive Community Services (CCS) expansion efforts has also impacted 
Wraparound contracted services and programs.  An analysis of the lower utilizers in the 
Wraparound Health Management Organization (HMO) resulted in a decision to transition 
those individuals into the CCS program to provide the same level of care but in a lesser 
benefit that, at this point, has no cost to the County. 

It has made it difficult to plan the budget when the capitation rate was changed in July, which 
is six to seven months into the County’s budget process.  The rate has been known to 
fluctuate in the past but not to this extent.  All of these factors has had an impact in one way 
or another. 

Wraparound is also in the process of working with the State on an update in the form of a 
contractual change to the current contract based on the Centers for Medicare and Medicaid 
Services (CMS) 2018 guidelines related to how data is reported and how the contract is 
governed.  As of November 1, 2019, a timeline of eighteen months was put in place to come 
into compliance with CMS’ new regulations and new data reporting structure. 

Chairman Lutzow requested the Board be provided with a future look forecast on the 
program reflecting break even or surplus scenarios. 

12.  Budget Amendment Policy. 

Matt Fortman, Fiscal Administrator, Department of Health and Human Services 

Mr. Fortman stated based on feedback received at the last Mental Health Board Executive 
Committee meeting, revisions were drafted to update the budget amendment process.  A 
scoring rubric was created for evaluation of each amendment by Behavioral Health Division 
(BHD) staff based on the criteria listed.  Criteria feedback from the Finance Committee is 
welcomed.  Scoring by BHD staff is non-binding and will be used only as a guide for the 
Finance Committee to consider.  Additionally, submitting amendments will be open to 
Milwaukee County citizens. 

The Board was informed the Finance Committee unanimously agreed to recommend 
approval of the Budget Amendment Policy. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 9 of 11 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
Budget Amendment Policy.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Neubauer) 
AYES: Curry, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 

and Wesley - 8 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: Davis – 1 

13.  Mental Health Board Executive Committee Update. 

Chairman Lutzow indicated the Board, as part of today’s discussions, has already touched 
on the majority of items from the Executive Committee’s December 6, 2019, meeting 
agenda.  He did provide additional information related to the proposed recommendation to 
create a governance committee stating the Board is in agreement in developing a practice of 
recommending potential candidates to consider to the appointing authorities. 

Chairman Lutzow also expressed interest in redesigning mental health, Alcohol and Other 
Drug Abuse (AODA), and Emergency Detention rates/programs based on a condition 
complexity scale.  Chairman Lutzow will work with Mr. Lappen to connect with someone who 
has the knowledge and is willing to work with a team comprised of BHD and health system 
representatives who will be tasked with creating the request for new additional codes to add 
to the level of reimbursement.  An improvement in the reimbursement structure would 
facilitate a better continuum of care, and most importantly, benefit the individuals who are 
not receiving the care needed. 

14.  Mental Health Board Quality Committee Update. 

Jennifer Bergersen, Chief Operations Officer, Behavioral Health Division 

Board Member Neubauer, Chairwoman of the Quality Committee, reviewed topics 
addressed at the Quality Committee’s quarterly meeting.  She discussed the third quarter 
2019 community-based and Wraparound key performance indicator (KPI) dashboard and 
Community Access to Recovery Services (CARS) summary and metrics, Vistelar training, 
hospital KPI dashboard and seclusion and restraint data, the Systems Improvement 
Agreement, status of policies and procedures, the Institutional Review Board report, and 
contract quality monitoring. 

Questions and comments ensued. 

15.  Behavioral Health Division In-Patient Clinical Capacity Restructuring. 

Dr. John Schneider, Chief Medical Officer, Behavioral Health Division 

Dr. Schneider stated scope of service changes are necessary in the area of acute adult 
inpatient services in preparation for the hospital transition to Universal Health Services.  The 
plan is to change Unit 43C, which is currently a women’s unit, to a mixed gender unit 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 10 of 11 

because it best supports current and future patient needs in bed capacity, patient 
experience, and staffing flexibility. 

Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c) for the purpose of considering 
employment or performance evaluation data for public employees over which the Board 
has jurisdiction and exercises responsibility.  Some or all of the information discussed 
may also be subject to confidentiality under Section 146.38, Stats. as they relate to the 

following matter(s): 

16.  Medical Executive Report Appointment and Privileging Recommendations. 

Dr. Shane Moisio, Medical Staff President, Behavioral Health Division 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Adjourn into Closed Session under the provisions of 
Wisconsin Statutes Section 19.85(1)(c) for the purpose of  
considering employment or performance evaluation data for  
public employees over which the Board has jurisdiction and  
exercises responsibility.  Some or all of the information   
discussed may also be subject to confidentiality under Section 
146.38, Stats. as it relates to Item 16.  At the conclusion of the  
Closed Session, the Board may reconvene in Open Session to  
take whatever action(s) it may deem necessary on the aforesaid 
item.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Eilers) 
AYES: Curry, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, and 

Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 
EXCUSED: Davis - 1 

The Board convened into Closed Session at 11:02 a.m. to discuss Item 16 and reconvened 
back into Open Session at approximately 11:10 a.m.  The roll was taken, and all Board 
Members were present. 

MOTION BY: (Eilers) Approve the Medical Staff Credentialing Report and 
Medical Executive Committee Recommendations.  8-0 

MOTION 2ND BY: (Perez) 
AYES: Curry, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, and 

Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 

17.  Mental Health Board and Committee 2020 Final Meeting Schedule. 

Board Members were informed the calendar before them today is the Board’s finalized 2020 
meeting schedule.  The finalized version was slightly modified from the draft provided in 
October.  Meeting calendar invitations have been forwarded and are accurate. 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

December 12, 2019 11 of 11 

18.  Adjournment. 

MOTION BY: (Perez) Adjourn.  8-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Neubauer) 
AYES: Curry, Eilers, Lanier, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, and 

Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 

This meeting was recorded.  The official copy of these minutes and subject reports, along with 
the audio recording of this meeting, is available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health 
Division/Mental Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  8:07 a.m. to 11:15 a.m. 

Adjourned, 

Jodi Mapp 

Jodi Mapp
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

The next meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board will be a Public Hearing 
On Thursday, January 23, 2020, @ 4:30 p.m. at the 

Washington Park Senior Center 
4420 West Vliet Street 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance 

The December 12, 2019, meeting minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health 
Board are hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular meeting of the 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board. 

Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance


 

  

Chairperson:  Thomas Lutzow 
Vice-Chairperson:  Maria Perez 
Secretary:  Michael Davis 
Senior Executive Assistant:  Jodi Mapp, 257-5202 

 
MILWAUKEE COUNTY MENTAL HEALTH BOARD 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 

Thursday, January 23, 2020 - 4:30 P.M. 
Washington Park Senior Center 

4420 West Vliet Street 
 

MINUTES 
 

PRESENT: Michael Davis, Kathie Eilers, Rachel Forman, Jon Lehrmann, Thomas Lutzow,  
  Mary Neubauer, Maria Perez, *James Stevens, and *Brenda Wesley 
ABSENT: Robert Curry and Walter Lanier 
EXCUSED: Sheri Johnson and  Duncan Shrout 
 
*Board Members James Stevens and Brenda Wesley were not present at the time the roll was 
called but joined the meeting shortly thereafter. 
 
SCHEDULED ITEMS: 
 

1.  Welcome. 
 
Chairman Lutzow greeted Board Members and welcomed the audience to the 
January 23, 2020, Mental Health Board Public Hearing. 
 

2.  Public Comment on Psychiatric Crisis Redesign and all Behavioral Health Division 
Topics/Services. 
 
The hearing opened for public comment.  The following individuals appeared and provided 
comments: 
 
Kelly Coleman 
Vanetta Calhoun 
Veronica Stanton 
Shay Davis 
Sue Gadacz, Mental Health Task Force 
Barbara Beckert, Disability Rights Wisconsin 
Susan Gadacz, Outreach Community Center 
Jeffrey Coleman 
John Pacala 
Purnima Nath 



SCHEDULED ITEMS (CONTINUED): 

Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

January 23, 2020 2 of 2 

Due to technical difficulties, this meeting was not recorded.  The official copy of these minutes 
and subject reports are available on the Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division/Mental 
Health Board web page. 

Length of meeting:  4:33 p.m. to 5:17 p.m. 

Adjourned, 

Jodi Mapp
Senior Executive Assistant 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

The next regular meeting for the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board is 
Thursday, February 27, 2020, @ 8:00 a.m. at the 

Milwaukee County Zoo 
Peck Welcome Center Pavilion 
10001 West Bluemound Road 

Visit the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board Web Page at: 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords 

The January 23, 2020, hearing minutes of the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 
are hereby submitted for approval at the next scheduled regular meeting of the 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board. 

Michael Davis, Secretary 
Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

3. Adjournment. 

MOTION BY: (Neubauer) Adjourn.  8-0 
MOTION 2ND BY: (Eilers) 
AYES: Davis, Eilers, Forman, Lutzow, Neubauer, Perez, Stevens, 

and Wesley – 8 
NOES: 0 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/EN/DHHS/About/Governance#MCMHBrecords


1 

COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
INTEROFFICE COMMUNICATION 

DATE :     2/21/2020 

TO :    Thomas Lutzow, Chairman, Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM :     Joe Lamers, Director, Office of Performance, Strategy, and Budget 

SUBJECT : DAS Quarterly Update / 2021 Operating Budget Gap and Process 

OVERVIEW 

As part of the 2021 budget process, the Office of Performance, Strategy, and Budget will be providing 

budget updates to the County Board’s Finance and Audit Committee as well as the Mental Health 

Board. 

This report provides a preliminary operating budget gap estimate for 2021.  A timeline for the 2021 

budget process is also provided. 

The Office of Performance, Strategy, and Budget (PSB) preliminarily projects a budget gap of $21.3 

million for Fiscal Year 2021. This gap is part of an ongoing structural deficit, whereby growth in 

revenue is not sufficient to keep pace with inflationary operating cost growth on an annual basis. In 

addition to the ongoing imbalance between revenue and expenditure growth, the 2021 budget will be 

impacted by an estimated reduction of $4.5 million in revenues related to the sale of Doyne hospital. 

Potential options for closing the budget gap are also presented for consideration within this report. 

Additionally, the report provides relevant updates on strategic planning, revenues, and funding for 

Transit. 

BACKGROUND 

Milwaukee County has been operating with a structural deficit dating back to the early 2000’s. 

County officials and policy makers have repeatedly been required to focus budget planning 

efforts on where to reduce expenditures while opportunities to raise revenue and make new 

investments are limited. The ongoing imbalance is caused by stagnant revenue growth which is 

limited by State statutes and is not sufficient to keep pace with inflationary operating cost 

growth, or with increases in legacy healthcare and pension expenses.  

Between 2012 and 2020, policy makers have been required to close cumulative budget gaps of 

approximately $261 million or an average of $29 million per year. While the budget has been 

balanced as legally required on an annual basis, the structural deficit persists and is projected to 

continue into the future. The most recent five-year financial forecast prepared by the 

Comptroller’s Office projected an operating budget gap of $79.6 million by 2024.   

ANALYSIS 

5



2 

 

 

Based on preliminary estimates, the County will be facing a 2021 operating budget gap of $21.3 

million. Major factors contributing to the projected budget gap are shown in the chart below. 

These amounts reflect: projected increases in expenditure items compared to 2020, removal of 

one-time revenue sources that are included in the 2020 budget, and increased revenue projections 

which are shown in the chart as negative values because they reduce the projected gap amount. 

 

 
 

The following descriptions provide additional information regarding assumptions used to 

develop the estimated gap. The numbers presented here are based on estimated changes for the 

2021 budget and are subject to variability as the budget process continues.   

 

Expenditures: 

 

Compensation Increases:  The 2021 budget gap estimate assumes $4.6 million in new costs 

related to compensation increases. This assumption includes $2.2 million for a new 1% increase 

effective at the beginning of 2021 for most employees.  An additional $2.4 million is estimated 

to support the fully annualized cost of partial year increases which were funded in the 2020 

budget.  Partial year funding increases in the 2020 budget included additional funding for trades 

staff, corrections officers, and Departmental Other Salary Adjustment Allocations (DOSAA) 

which are provided for merit and equity increases.  The 2021 budget gap estimate does not 

include new funding for DOSAA increases in 2021. In recent years these funds have been 

allocated in the 4th quarter of the budget. PSB is recommending that the County maintain the 



3 

 

DOSAA funding structure but shift the cost to be on a fully annual basis, with the next round of 

DOSAA allocations to be implemented in January of 2022.   

 

Health Care:  Health care expenses are currently projected to increase by $4.0 million over the 

2020 budget, representing an increase of approximately 4%.  Health care industry expenses have 

been subject to a high level of volatility.  The County’s health care actuary has commonly 

projected growth rates of 7% or higher, although actual growth rates have been below this in 

recent years and the County has experienced surpluses in the health care budget.  Recent year 

experience factors into projecting 4% instead of 7% growth for the initial 2021 gap estimate.  

Health care projections will be closely reviewed in the coming months and during the budget 

process. A final health care amount for the 2021 budget will be decided in the summer of 2020 in 

consultation with the Comptroller’s Office.   

 

Pension: A pension growth estimate of $2.4 million is projected for 2021. This is a preliminary 

estimate. The County is expected to receive its annual pension actuarial valuation in May, which 

will outline the 2021 budget contribution. 

 

Debt Service:  An increase of $1.0 million is a preliminary estimate of growth in debt service 

principal and interest costs. This report also projects a corresponding increase in property tax to 

coincide with the increase in debt service expenses, meaning that this cost increase is not 

expected to add to the budget gap. 

 

Other Operating Cost to Continue:  A $12.7 million increase is estimated as needed for 

inflationary operating costs, excluding personnel and debt service costs already quantified in the 

above stated categories.   The $12.7 million increase estimate includes two main components: 

 

1) $10.7 million or approximately 2% of inflationary growth is estimated for operating 

costs including utilities, commodities, professional services, and other contract 

services. This estimate assumes that these costs will go up with inflation. 

Additionally, several of the County’s contracts have inflationary escalators built in. 

 

2) $2.0 million of potential ongoing costs are estimated related to the County’s 

Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) system. The 2020 budget included over $2.0 

million in cost savings related to the County’s mainframe and Ceridian systems, 

which were anticipated to be retired as a result of the ERP.  However, implementation 

of the new ERP is delayed. Until the system implementation date is confirmed, this 

report assumes that a portion of Ceridian and mainframe costs will need to continue 

in 2021, and that this funding may need to be restored in 2021.  

 

Revenues: 

 

Lost Revenues:  

 

Debt Service Reserve:   The 2020 budget included $3.6 million in funding from the Debt 

Service Reserve which is considered a one-time funding source. 

 



4 

 

State Shared Revenue: A $409,000 reduction in State Shared revenue is anticipated in 2021 

related to the Volkswagen Settlement grant.  Milwaukee County received an award of $5.5 

million related to the first round of this grant program, which supports bus purchases. The grant 

is offset by a 75% or $4.1 million reduction in State Shared revenue applied over ten years with 

reductions expected to begin in 2021. 

 

Doyne Hospital Sale Revenue: A $4.5 million reduction related to the sale of Doyne hospital is 

expected in 2021.  Based on the sale agreement between Milwaukee County and Froedtert 

hospital, the County receives annual payments over 25 years beginning in 1996 with the final 

payment expected in 2021.  The 2020 payment was budgeted at $9.0 million and is the final full 

year of the payment.  This revenue is expected to be reduced in half in 2021 to $4.5 million and 

eliminated in 2022, which creates a $4.5 million gap in both the 2021 and 2022 budgets.   

 

Increased Revenues: 

 

Property Tax:  Based on experience from the recent years, the gap estimate includes 

approximately 1% growth or a $2.9 million increase in property tax related to net new 

construction. In addition, a $1.0 million increase is projected directly related to the estimated 

growth in debt service expenditures. The State of Wisconsin releases property tax levy limit 

worksheets and guidance in or around September of each year which confirm the amount of 

allowable property tax increases each year. 

 

Sales Tax:  County sales tax receipts are projected to grow by $3.3 million compared to the 2020 

budget.  This represents continued growth of approximately 2.0% per year over the past twelve 

months of actual revenue receipts. 

 

Unclaimed Revenue:  Every other year the County Treasurer advertises the possession of 

unclaimed funds. Unclaimed revenues of $1.25 million are expected in the 2021 budget.  

 

Other / Reimbursement Revenue:  $3.4 million of other revenues are projected. This is 

primarily based on an estimate that approximately 15% of cost increases can be covered with 

outside reimbursement revenue, primarily for services in the airport and health and human 

services.  

 

 

Closing the Budget Gap 

 

The County has applied various strategies which have helped to close out budget gaps in 

previous years. Some examples include: restructuring of Worker’s Compensation benefits, 

restructuring of health care and Other Post Employee (OPEB) benefits, and reducing the 

County’s footprint by over 1.6 million square feet.  Various reforms have been applied to the 

County’s pension system. The County’s salary step structure has been frozen since 2010 with 

limited increases in the range of 1% to 2% applied per year. On the revenue side, the County 

now requires employee health and pension contributions that did not exist in the past, resulting in 

$21 million per year. A $30 Vehicle Registration Fee was implemented in 2017 and generates 

approximately $17 million per year.  



5 

 

 

In addition, due to the County’s ongoing structural deficit, County departments have historically 

been tasked with identifying year-over-year savings within their budgets. This has come in two 

forms including: 1) requiring departments to self-fund inflationary and other cost increases 

within their budgets and 2) through application of levy reduction targets that have further 

reduced department budgets.  

 

On the capital side of the equation, in some years the County has not been able to fund cash 

financed capital projects (which are not bond eligible) at desired policy levels due to competing 

needs for funding in the operating budget. Furthermore, the County’s debt service reserve has 

also been used to support the operating budget in recent years, which is made possible as a result 

of year-end surplus.   

 

The below chart demonstrates how some of these same strategies could impact the 2021 budget 

forecast, if they are applied in a manner that is comparable to previous years. 

 

 
 

• Requiring departments to self-fund operating cost increases within their existing budgets 

could reduce tax levy by an estimated $12.0 million. This estimate includes $9.1 million 

of savings that would result from containing inflationary cost growth on contracts, 

utilities, and services.  In addition, $2.9 million of tax levy savings could be realized by 

further requiring departments to self-fund certain salary increases within their budgets 

(1% and DOSAA funding).  The task of containing inflationary cost growth becomes 

more challenging for departments each year.     

 

• The County has a goal of cash financing 20% of its capital projects. In the 2020 budget 

this goal was slightly exceeded with a cash capital budget of $11.6 million. In some 

previous years the 20% goal was not met due to competing operating budget demands 

and priorities. Until the full list of capital project requests is received and reviewed it is 

difficult to determine if cash capital savings can be achieved in 2021. For purpose of 

analysis and planning, this report assumes a $3 million reduction in cash capital could be 

considered in 2021.  

 

• Although the Debt Service Reserve (DSR) should not be considered a permanent funding 

source, the County has utilized a portion of the DSR for the operating budget in previous 

years. A $3.6 million withdrawal would be consistent with the 2020 adopted budget. 

 

• Even if the above tax levy savings scenarios were all applied, a remaining gap of 



6 

 

approximately $2.7 million would still exist. The Office of Performance, Strategy, and 

Budget will continue to seek solutions to these funding challenges and provide additional 

reports to the County Board and Finance and Audit Committee in the coming months. 

 

Strategic Planning 

 

Over the past year the County has worked to develop a new strategic plan which is also being 

presented to the County Board for adoption in March 2020.  The strategic plan outlines the 

vision of the County to be: “By achieving racial equity, Milwaukee is the healthiest county in 

Wisconsin.”   

 

In March of 2020 a resolution and ordinance are being presented to the County Board, which is 

“committing Milwaukee County to advancing the strategic priority of racial equity to improve 

the health of the entire community by eliminating any racism in the County’s policies, 

procedures, practices, and power structures.” 

 

The strategic plan includes three-year objectives to achieve goals which are stated below, within 

each of the following focus areas: 

 

1) Diverse & Inclusive Workforce: Milwaukee County leadership, management, and 

staff will reflect the diversity of its residents to better represent the experiences and 

ideas of the people it serves. The County resolves to build a collaborative, supportive, 

respectful workplace environment that increases the participation and contribution of 

all employees. 

2) Customer-focused Design: Government services should meet the needs of its 

customers. Redesigning what, where, and how services are provided to meet customer 

needs should be done with customer participation. Defining customer populations and 

including those customer groups in the design and decision-making of services will 

help ensure that government services are meeting the needs of those using, or who 

could be using, County services. To this end, the County must focus on purposeful 

and meaningful community engagement on the front-end and throughout the process 

of decision making, which will produce more appropriate and equitable power-

sharing between experts working in the government and the customers of County 

services. 

3) Employee Voice: To enhance the health of Milwaukee County residents, County 

government should ensure that services meet everyone’s needs. Thousands of 

Milwaukee County employees directly serve residents each day, and their 

perspectives should be more-intentionally included to continually improve the equity 

of policies, procedures, and practices. 

4) Improved Performance & Equitable Practice: Milwaukee County government 

must improve the quality of data it collects and analysis of the impact of services on 

customers. It is not enough to wish that a service is producing its intended outcome; 

the County should use qualitative and quantitative data to assess impact and 

continuously improve where services are falling short in order to improve the quality 

of life for all residents. 

5) Increased Revenue: Over the past decade, Milwaukee County has cut an average of 



7 

 

$20 to $30 million annually due to the structural deficit and has accumulated 

hundreds of millions of dollars in deferred maintenance. The harms to services caused 

by the structural deficit are largely due to the Wisconsin State Legislature not 

sufficiently funding mandated county services, the County’s limited options to raise 

local revenue, and fiscally irresponsible decisions made decades ago. The County 

must find sustainable revenue sources and continue to pursue organizational 

efficiencies so the government can make meaningful investments to advance racial 

equity 

 

Achieving goals within these objective areas is likely to require some strategic investment as 

well as prioritization of services. An effort is underway to analyze and quantify what resources 

may be needed to realize goals within these objectives. It will be recommended for policy 

makers to consider funding for strategic plan priorities during the budget process. 

 

For additional information on the strategic plan, see File No. 20-174 which is also being 

submitted as part of the March 2020 County Board meeting cycle. 

 

 

Focus on Transit Funding 

 

Similar to 2020, the Milwaukee County Transit System (MCTS) is expected to be faced with 

significant budget challenges in 2021. Given the magnitude of budget issues impacting MCTS, 

this report provides further information specifically focused on the Transit budget. 

 

State and Federal revenues represent approximately $93 million or 60% of Transit’s 2020 

operating budget, while Property Tax Levy, Vehicle Registration Fee revenue, and passenger 

revenues comprise the remainder. For several years, State and Federal funding for Transit has 

declined. This trend is expected to continue in 2021. Following is a summary of the major 

challenges and issues impacting Transit’s 2021 budget outlook. 

 

• MCTS is faced with a $2.4 million reduction in federal Congestion Mitigation Air 

Quality (CMAQ) funding that is currently used to support the Transit operating budget. 

This funding was initially granted to the County in 2012 for the purpose of introducing 

new express bus services. MCTS and the Milwaukee County Department of 

Transportation (MCDOT) have indicated that this CMAQ funding allocation expires in 

2020 and the County will not have an opportunity for renewal due to federal limits on the 

number of years that CMAQ funds can be used for a new service. 

 

• The 2020 MCTS operating budget included $2.9 million of limited term 5307 federal 

grant carryover funding which is permissible by the Federal Transit Administration 

(FTA).  This was a strategic yet short-term solution to support the Transit budget in 2020.  

MCDOT has indicated that these funds can be made available again in 2021, but that this 

is not an ideal long-term solution.  Utilizing the same amount of funds for the operating 

budget in 2021 would result in a $2.7 million gap for 2022. 

 

• MCDOT has indicated that State Mass Transit Operating Assistance will remain flat at 



8 

 

$65.5 million in 2021. This revenue source was increased by $1.2 million in 2020 as a 

result of the enacted 2019-21 State budget. The full value of the State biennial budget 

increase was already reflected in 2020 and there are no additional State funds expected 

for 2021. Flat funding of this revenue source also contributes to the budget gap because 

this does not provide revenue to support inflationary cost increases. Mass Transit 

Operating Assistance is the single largest revenue source in the MCTS budget. State 

funding for Milwaukee County transit remains lower than it was a decade ago. 

 

• MCTS is estimating approximately $2 million in additional salary and fringe benefit costs 

in 2021, based on current contractual agreements and early fringe benefit estimates. 

 

• MCTS is preliminarily projecting a further decline of $650,000 in passenger revenue in 

2021, which would continue a trend of declining ridership in recent years. The 2020 

budget document shows that ridership levels are expected to be reduced to 27.7 million in 

2020, which is a 13.5% reduction from 31.5 million riders in 2017.   

 

• Property tax supports $12.2 million of the MCTS operating budget. As indicated in this 

report, the County faces a $21.3 million estimated budget gap for 2021, representing the 

variance between tax levy needs compared to funding that is available for County 

services. In past years, one of the strategies to close the budget gap has been to distribute 

levy reduction targets to departments in an across-the-board fashion. Any levy target 

amount would further add to Transit’s gap for 2021.  

 

• The Vehicle Registration Fee (VRF), which is currently $30, currently provides $16.1 

million of annual funding to the Transit operating budget, plus $1.1 million to the 

Highway Maintenance budget, for total annual amount of $17.2 million. The current 

budget gap estimate assumes that this fee will remain flat in 2021.  Under State statutes 

the County does have the ability to raise the VRF for transportation related services, 

including transit. For example, a $10 VRF increase would generate an estimated $5.7 

million of added revenue. A $20 VRF would add $11.5 million of revenue. A $30 

increase would result in $17.2 million. However, the Milwaukee County VRF is already 

higher than most jurisdictions across the State. 

 

With the above factors combined, the Transit budget on its own has a projected gap in the range 

of $5.0 million to $7.7 million. The range is dependent upon decisions related to the use of 

federal 5307 carryover revenue.  If the federal carryover revenue is used to support the 2021 

budget, that will create a gap in 2022. 

 

 

Revenue Update  

 

Significant focus has been placed on the need for revenue reforms for Milwaukee County and 

local governments across the State of Wisconsin. State statutes restrict the amount of revenues 

that Counties and other local governments are statutorily allowed to collect. For Milwaukee 

County, statutory restrictions have resulted in forecasted revenue growth of less than one percent 

per year which is not enough to support inflation, and this is the primary cause of the County’s 



9 

 

structural deficit.   

 

The “Fair Deal for Milwaukee Workgroup” was created in 2018 to build a new partnership with 

the State of Wisconsin to protect services and invest in our future. This workgroup was co-

chaired by the County Board Chairman and the County Executive and included a diverse group 

of stakeholders, including community advocates to business interests. The workgroup provided a 

number of recommendations including: allowing Milwaukee County local control to generate 

revenue and reduce reliance on property tax; increased contributions from the state towards the 

provision of state-mandated services; fully reimbursing the County for the cost of patrolling 

freeways; adjusting shared revenue payments and other state aids to align with inflation; equally 

sharing Circuit Court and Register of Deeds fees collected by the County; and other 

recommendations. 

 

In October of 2019 the State legislature introduced bills SB471 and AB521 which would allow 

Milwaukee County voters to decide if Milwaukee County should increase its sales tax by 1% and 

provide property tax relief. A 1% sales tax is estimated to generate over $160 million in sales tax 

annually. Under the proposed bill, a minimum of 25% of that revenue would be set aside for 

property tax relief. The remaining revenue would be split between Milwaukee County and its 19 

municipalities to meet critical needs. 

 

SB 471 has been referred to the Senate Committee on Agriculture, Revenue and Financial 

Institutions.  AB 521 has been referred to the Assembly Committee on Ways and 

Means.  Legislative leadership, members of the respective committees, and Milwaukee area 

legislators have been working together, in a bi-partisan manner, to build support for the 

legislation and schedule a public hearing in the remaining weeks of the current legislative 

session.  

 

The 2021 operating budget gap estimate does not make any assumptions regarding the additional 

sales tax rate.  

 

 

 

NEXT STEPS:  2021 Budget Process 

 

Resolving the operating budget gap will be done through the budget process which takes place through 

the following timeline: 

 

Forecasting and Budget Strategy Phase: 

• January–April – DAS-PSB prepares forecasts for the upcoming fiscal year and develops 

budget assumptions with the County Executive and County Board 

Department Request Phase:  

• March or April – Departments receive operating budget instructions 

• April - July – Departments develop their budget requests 

• July – Departments submit their budget requests to the Office of Performance, Strategy, 

and Budget 

Recommended Budget Phase: 



10 

 

• August-September – County Executive works with DAS-PSB and departments to finalize 

the Recommended Budget 

• October 1 – County Executive submits the Recommended Budget 

County Board Phase:   

• October-November – Finance and Audit Committee reviews and requests information on 

the Recommended Budget 

• November – The County Board adopts the budget 

 

Throughout this process, DAS-PSB will provide additional information and updates.  

 

RECOMMENDATION 

 

This report is for informational purposes only. No action is needed. DAS-PSB will continue to 

provide information throughout the budget process. The administration looks forward to 

continuing work with the Board to develop a long-term fiscal sustainability plan for the County. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

_________________________ 

Joseph Lamers, Director  

Office of Performance, Strategy and Budget 

Department of Administrative Services 

 

 

 

 

Cc:  Chris Abele, Milwaukee County Executive 

James “Luigi” Schmitt, Chair, Finance and Audit Committee 

Willie Johnson Jr., Co-chair, Finance and Audit Committee 

Sheldon Wasserman, Finance Committee 

Supreme Moore Omokunde, County Supervisor  

Jason Haas, County Supervisor 

 Sequanna Taylor, County Supervisor 

 Eddie Cullen, County Supervisor 

 Scott Manske, County Comptroller 

 Steven Cady, Research and Policy Director, Office of the Comptroller 

 Teig Whaley-Smith, DAS Director 

 Raisa Koltun, Chief of Staff, Office of the County Executive 

 Kelly Bablitch, Chief of Staff, County Board 

 Dan Laurila, DAS-PSB Operating Budget Manager 

  



6























8

















Aaron Hertzberg

Director of Economic Development

1

February 27, 2020



Milwaukee County Behavior Health Complex

2

Option Agreement:
9201-9501 W. Watertown Plank Road



3

Southwest Quadrant
Milwaukee County Research Park

NW Quad
Transit & 

Sheriff

Northeast Quadrant
Innovation Campus, Ronald McDonald House, WAC,

Milwaukee County Grounds Park, etc.

Southeast Quadrant
Milwaukee Regional Medical Center

(MRMC)



4

MRMC 
Partner 
Property

BHD Land

Water System



5

9501 
“CATC”

VACANT

9455
“Behavioral 

Health”
Occupied

9201
“Day Hospital”

VACANT

Behavioral Health Complex 



Timeline
• 2008: Milwaukee County explores demolition costs of BHD Complex

• 2015: Mental Health Board seeks alternative model for inpatient services

• June 2018: Milwaukee County agrees to sell leased land to MRMC Partners, 
negotiations underway for sale of the BHD land

• 2017: Milwaukee County closes Day Hospital Building

• 2018: Milwaukee County closes CATC Building

• September 2018: Mental Health Board approves UHS Contract

• January 2020: Milwaukee County agrees to sell BHD land to MRMC Land Bank

• January 2020: MRCM Partners exercise Options

• February 2020: Mental Health Board considers sale of the BHD complex

• 2020 Q1: Land sales close *(if approved by MHB)

• 2020 Q2: Milwaukee County reaches deal to sell water system to MRMC Water 
and the City of Wauwatosa

• 2020 Q3/4: Water System sales close
6



7

… may not sell the county mental health complex under this section 
without approval of the Milwaukee County mental health board.



Land Sale: Goals
• Vacate underutilized, costly and 

inefficient buildings.

• Support the BHD vision for a 
community based service model 

• UHS Agreement

• Access clinics

• Other…

• Allow BHD to continue operations on 
site as needed 

• Receive maximum value from sale

8

BizTimes Milwaukee



9

Additional Goals
• Support Bus-Rapid Transit

• Support a state-of-the-art Center 
for Forensic Science and 
Protective Medicine (CFSPM).

• Allow MRMC partners to control 
their growth and further invest 
in Milwaukee County.

• Aligns with Wauwatosa’s Life 
Science District Master Plan 
(December 2018)

• Connects road networks



10

Land Sale: Terms
• The Sale price is based on appraised value of the property.

• The buyer will demolish the CATC and Day Hospital Buildings 
at their cost.

• BHD will remain operational on site.  Initial lease term is for 10 
years at $1/year, but the County has the option to extend the 
lease as necessary.  

• The lease back includes the entirety of “Lot 3” and an 
additional 200 parking spaces.  Milwaukee County remains 
responsible for facilities maintenance throughout the lease.

• After the County leaves the facility, the buyer may terminate 
the County’s lease.  When the buyer terminates the lease, 
they become responsible for demolition of the building. 

https://county.milwaukee.gov/files/cou
nty/administrative-
services/EconDev/Documents/BHDOpti
onAgmt-Signed1.pdf

https://county.milwaukee.gov/files/county/administrative-services/EconDev/Documents/BHDOptionAgmt-Signed1.pdf


11

Behavioral Health Complex 



Land Sale: Leveraging sale for BRT

• MRMC to fund $4,511,062 in planned BRT 
infrastructure.

• Mutually beneficial investment will be credited 
against the land sale price.

• MRMC will complete investments with other 
corresponding road improvements.

• MRMC will follow Milwaukee County and FTA 
constructing and contracting guidelines.

12



13

Land Sale Value

MARKET VALUE

Land Value (BHD and Surplus) ($190,821/acre) 8,070,391

Cost to Demolish Existing Buildings - 14,200,000

Total Land Price - $ 5,354,909

SALE VALUE

Land Value (BHD and Surplus) ($190,821/acre) 8,070,391

Cost to Demolish Existing Buildings 14,200,000

BRT Investment Credit - 4,511,062

CFSPM Land Credit (≈6 acres) - 1,144,926

Surplus Land Environmental Credit - 75,000

Total Land Price $ 2,339,403*

*Final amounts are dependent on credits



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: February 10, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairman – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Administrator, Behavioral Health Division, Providing an 
Administrative Update 

Background 

The purpose of this standing report is to highlight key activities or issues related to the 
Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division (BHD) since the previous Board meeting and 
provide ongoing perspectives to the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board regarding the 
work of the organization and its leadership. 

Discussion 

Optimal Operations and Administrative Efficiencies 

 Systems Improvement Agreement (SIA) Update

As previously discussed, BHD has agreed to enter into a SIA agreement with the Centers
for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) to bring BHD into compliance with the
Conditions of Participation for the Medicare/Medicaid Programs.  Critical Management
Solutions was awarded the contract after a Request for Proposals (RFP) for an “expert
consultant” to complete a gap analysis at BHD.

Critical Management Solutions was on site at BHD the week of January 7th with a team
of four subject matter experts deployed to all BHD hospital related components.  Their
final report is due to CMS on February 17, 2020, and we would expect to see it
sometime shortly thereafter.   At an exit meeting with BHD leadership, a high-level
summary document was provided listing areas of improvement.  As expected, patient
safety issues related to the outdated BHD hospital building topped the list.  It has been
well described that the aging BHD Acute Hospital was not designed with the current
Joint Commission standards regarding ligature risk in mind and years of deferred
maintenance make it very challenging to maintain our current units---a significant factor
in the decision to outsource BHD inpatient to Universal Health Services.

10



Administrative Update 
02/10/2020 
Page 2 
 

Based on the identified risks, the BHD team has developed a plan to immediately 
address the areas of high risk to patient safety, with a plan to resolve every other 
identified issue by the August 30, 2020, deadline to be ready for a CMS survey per the 
SIA agreement.   The top ranked identified issues are ligature risks, Emergency Medical 
Treatment and Labor Act (EMTALA) documentation, Quality Assurance Performance 
Improvement (QAPI), which consists of data integrity, aggregation of data and use, Root 
Cause Analysis, and hospital contract oversight. 
 
The Compliance Monitor position called for in the SIA has also been filled.  Original RFP 
winner Barrins backed out at the last minute, but Greeley - who scored similarly on the 
RFP - has agreed to contract terms and assigned Jeanne Wypyski.  She started full time 
at BHD on Feb 3, 2020.   On Feb 4, 2020, the BHD team and Chairman Lutzow reviewed 
some preliminary cost analysis around the various building improvements, and we 
continue to weigh options to complete the work in the most cost-effective and efficient 
manner possible, without compromising patient safety. 
 
On February 7, 2020, we had a call with Critical Management Solutions where we 
reviewed our risk stratification analysis, and we received guidance as to how to more 
thoughtfully and scientifically assign risk scores to various observed risks.  An immediate 
risk abatement strategy of locking patient bathroom doors until the ligature risks raised 
with bathroom doors and shower doors can be permanently addressed was approved 
by the consultants, as was the immediate removal of some built-in furniture and 
sprinkler head replacement on Child/Adolescent Inpatient Services (CAIS).  Assignments 
have been made to several teams who will address shortcomings identified in the gap 
analysis.  Once we receive the official report, the teams will devise plans to resolve 
areas of concern by our SIA imposed deadlines. 

 
High Quality and Accountable Service Delivery 
 

 Request for Proposals (RFP) Appeals/Protests 
 

There have been a number of protests filed regarding RFP award decisions made over 
the past few months.  This has necessitated the extension of several contracts with 
incumbent providers in 2020 until the appeals process is complete and concerns are 
addressed as prescribed in our policies.  The issue of making the Department of Health 
and Human Services (DHHS)-wide RPF process more accessible to grassroots providers 
and making sure our policies and procedures going forward are aligned with our goals 
around racial equity is a top priority.  In response to one recent protest, we identified 
scoring disparities that led us to re-score submissions with a new five-person panel.  In 
assembling the panels, we focused on diversity, subject matter experience, and included 
both Behavioral Health Division/DHHS staff and outside agency partners.  We are 
committed to establishing a new RFP process in 2020 which is more accessible and 



Administrative Update 
02/10/2020 
Page 3 
 

manageable for smaller and upstart community providers, addresses concerns around 
racial bias and opportunity, and where expectations and processes are clear to all. 

 

 
Other Topics of Interest 
 

 Kane Communications Update 
 

See Attachment A. 
 
 

 
_________________________    
Mike Lappen, Administrator 
Milwaukee County Behavioral Health Division 
Department of Health and Human Services 



Mental Health Board Report / February 2020 

EMPLOYEE ENGAGEMENT 
BHD Newsletter 
The Q4/Winter Newsletter was sent out on December 17 to nearly 1300 BHD staff, Mental Health 
Board members, community partners and providers. The newsletter features updates from 
administrator Michael Lappen and the following sections: program spotlight, employee spotlight, 
important dates, Schneider studies and top town hall questions. 

● 44.6 % of respondents engaged with the newsletter.
● 82% of respondents indicated that the newsletter provided “just the right amount of

information”, while 18% indicated that they are looking for “more information.”

Town Hall Meetings 
● Town Hall Meetings

○ January- Town Hall meetings were held on January 23 at 7:15 a.m. and 1:45 p.m.
■ Agenda:

● Systems Improvement Agreement Update
● Site visit and gap analysis from Critical Management Solutions
● Crisis Redesign Update
● Town Hall Question Box

■ Round-up analytics will be available later in the month.

○ February- Town Hall meetings will be held on February 20 at 7:15 a.m. and 1:45 p.m.

SYSTEMS IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT - CRITICAL MANAGEMENT 
SOLUTIONS VISIT 

With the importance of transparency and the teamwork that will be necessary, Kane and Mike 
Lappen worked together to create messaging for all BHD staff regarding the systems improvement 
agreement and the onsite visit from Critical Management Solutions.  An all staff email was 
distributed to 660 BHD staff. 51.6% of staff engaged with the communication.  

Page  1     kanecommgroup.com 

Attachment A



PUBLIC RELATIONS 

Media Relations 
● Help for the holidays: ‘Don’t give up’: Help for those suffering from a mental illness -

Milwaukee Neighborhood News Service
● Milwaukee call center provides 24-hour help to people experiencing holiday sadness - CBS58
● Crisis Resource Center planned for Milwaukee’s northwest side - BizTimes
● Clarke Square to get new clinic emphasizing behavioral & mental health services -

OnMilwaukee
● Clarke Square will get new clinic that emphasizes behavioral and mental health

services - Milwaukee Neighborhood News Service
● ‘Unhappiness comes in a lot of forms:’ The psychology of school gun violence, threats

- FOX6

NURSE RECRUITMENT CAMPAIGN 
Current planning for the extended contract (January 1 - March 31)  is underway with BHD 
Administration, Human Resources and Kane Communications Group to indicate objectives and key 
performance indicators. 

CLINICALLY HIGH-RISK CAMPAIGN 

The objective of this project is to raise awareness of psychosis, educate audiences on what it means 
to be clinically at-risk for developing psychosis and share information with Wraparound Milwaukee’s 
target audiences on the resources available through BHD’s Wraparound Milwaukee program.  

The campaign includes high impact videos and strategically placed transit ads. The videos will be 
used for a combination of target audiences including the general public, high school students and 
their families, high school educators and community health workers. The transit ads will raise 
awareness among target audiences and encourage youth and their families to partner with BHD to 
access behavioral health services and resources. Bus shelter ads will also be placed around the four 
Milwaukee public high-schools that are partnering with Wraparound Milwaukee for high message 
visibility. 

Bus Advertisements for the program are currently running now through March 2, 2020. 

Psychiatric Crisis Redesign Community Engagement Project 
Perceptivity, a subsidiary of Kane Communications Group, is contracted to develop and implement 
community engagement efforts that align with the following goals: 

● Educate the community and build awareness of the psychiatric crisis service redesign
process and the programs and services BHD continues to offer.

● Gather systems-level and specific element input from key stakeholders at various points in
the redesign process.

● Keep the community well-informed at every step of the redesign process.

The community engagement efforts will serve the following purposes: 

● To turn outward and authentically engage key stakeholders.
● To generate public knowledge or input, ideas and aspirations that can be combined with

expert knowledge and used to inform the psychiatric crisis redesign.

Page  2     kanecommgroup.com 

https://milwaukeenns.org/2019/12/24/help-for-the-holidays-dont-give-up-help-for-those-suffering-from-a-mental-illness/
https://www.cbs58.com/news/milwaukee-call-center-provides-24-hour-help-to-people-experiencing-holiday-sadness
https://biztimes.com/crisis-resource-center-planned-for-milwaukees-northwest-side/
https://onmilwaukee.com/raisemke/articles/nns-clarke-square-new-clinic.html
https://milwaukeenns.org/2019/12/05/clarke-square-will-get-new-clinic-that-emphasizes-behavioral-and-mental-health-services/
https://milwaukeenns.org/2019/12/05/clarke-square-will-get-new-clinic-that-emphasizes-behavioral-and-mental-health-services/
https://milwaukeenns.org/2019/12/05/clarke-square-will-get-new-clinic-that-emphasizes-behavioral-and-mental-health-services/
https://fox6now.com/2019/12/03/unhappiness-comes-in-a-lot-of-forms-the-psychology-of-school-gun-violence-threats/


● To provide Kane Communications Group and BHD with critical research that is needed to
tailor ongoing communication plans, strategies and tactics.

The strategy is multi-pronged and includes: 
● Community Input Sessions - eight (90 to 120-minute), facilitated community input sessions,

for 15 to 20 participants per input session.
● Communications - comprehensive, targeted communications to build awareness of BHD’s

redesign process, drive participation in the input sessions and keep stakeholders informed.
● Report-Out - a combination of report-out tactics including a written summary report, video

report, key stakeholder sessions, community-wide sessions and face-to-face meetings.
● Evaluation - pre and post input session evaluations to collect demographic and quantitative

data on participant knowledge of the psych crisis redesign efforts and the community input
process.

Page  3     kanecommgroup.com 







































16

52

81

111

123

112 112 112

125

0

20

40

60

80

100

120

140

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Certified Peer Specialists in Milwaukee County, 

2011-19
Redesign 

Task Force 

established

7











COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: January 23, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 
Requesting Authorization to Execute 2019 Professional Services Contract 
Amendments and 2020 Contracts for Therapy, Radiology, Pharmacy, 
Consulting, Software, Training, Laboratory, and Grant Management 
Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 
(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 
shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 
the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 
BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 
contracts for 2019 and 2020. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 
Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental health 
and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Professional Services Contracts 

Hospital/Operations Contracts 

Column Rehab Services, Inc. - $126,000 
Column Rehab Services, Inc. provides physical therapy and speech pathology services at 
Milwaukee County BHD. $26,000 is requested for 2019 and an additional $100,000 is requested 
for 2020. The three-year contract amount will be increased to $225,000. 

MobileX USA - $33,434 
MobileX USA provides radiology and ultrasound services to BHD. BHD is requesting $33,434 
for 2020.  The three-year contract amount will be increased to $103,434. 

13



2 
 

 
Pharmacy Systems, Inc. - $1,000 
Pharmacy Systems, Inc., provides pharmaceutical services to BHD. BHD is requesting an 
additional $1,000 for 2019 as a result of the adjusted/projected consumer price index 
(CPI). These funds are being requested for 2019. The six-year contract amount will be increased 
to $4,552,145. 
 
The Greeley Company, LLC (Greeley) - $950,000 
Greeley is a healthcare consulting company that specializes in accreditation and regulatory 
compliance.  They will be providing a full-time compliance consultant to perform ongoing 
monitoring of the hospital’s plan of correction in accordance with the Centers for Medicare and 
Medicaid System Improvement Agreement (SIA) requirements. The Compliance Consultant will 
be required for the duration of the SIA anticipated to end on July 1, 2021. This contract was 
initially awarded to Barrins & Associates Consulting (Barrins) as part of the request for proposal 
process, however Barrins declined the contract as they no longer had an Associate available to 
fill the position BHD is requesting $950,000 for the 2020 contract. The one-year contract amount 
will be $950,000. 
 
Verge Solutions, LLC dba Verge Health - $53,590 
Verge Health owns and operates a hosted, Proprietary software suite of products (the "Verge 
Systems"). The Verge System assists healthcare entities to automate processes through 
customized workflows, creation and management of performance improvement activities, 
collection, management and analysis of data. $53,590 is requested for 2020.  The four-year 
contract amount will be increased to $198,428. 
 
Vistelar, LLC - $450,000 
Vistelar, LLC performs consulting, and training focused on creating a culture where all 
stakeholders are treated with dignity, while creating and maintaining an environment of care 
incompatible with aggression and that emphasizes everyone’s emotional and physical safety. The 
one-year contract amount will be $450,000. 
 
Wisconsin Diagnostics Laboratories, Inc.- $28,000 
Wisconsin Diagnostics Laboratories, Inc. provides Laboratory and Phlebotomy Services at 
Milwaukee County BHD. $28,000 is requested for 2020. The four-year contract will be increased 
to $127,900.  
  



3 
 

 
Youth Services Contracts 

 
Evaluation Research Services, LLC - $450 
Evaluation Research Services, LLC provides grant management coordination, inclusive of grant 
writing to Milwaukee County BHD.  Using a Lifecycle management approach to grant 
management, processes and infrastructure is developed and implemented to manage grant 
proposals from beginning, or 'pre-award', stage of a project implementation, or 'post award', 
through the termination, or 'closeout', of an award. BHD is requesting an additional $450 for 
2019 to assist Wraparound Milwaukee.  The three-year contract amount will be increased to 
$362,250. 
 
The Medical College of Wisconsin – $30,000 
The vendor provides behavioral health services to children and youth enrolled in Wraparound. 
BHD is requesting $30,000 for 2020. The ten-year contract amount will be increased to 
$117,360.70.  
 
UW-Milwaukee - $940,451 
University of WI-Milwaukee will support the redesign and implementation of the psychiatric 
crisis service system of care (SOC) for youth and young adults by expanding early intervention, 
prevention, response, and post-prevention services, while also working to enhance the crisis SOC 
for youth and their caregivers through infrastructure development. BHD is requesting an 
additional $940,451 over a four-year period. The four-year contract amount will be $1,272,999. 
 

Year Amount Term 
Year 1 $256,998.00 10/1/19 - 9/30/20 
Year 2 $222,617.00 10/1/20 - 9/30/21 
Year 3 $208,519.00 10/1/21 - 9/30/22 
Year 4 $252,317.00 10/1/22 - 9/30/23 

 
 
 Fiscal Summary 
 
The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below.  
 

Vendor 
Name 

Existing 
Amount/New 

2019 
Amount 
Requested 

2020 
Amount 
Requested 

2021 
Amount 
Requested 

2022 
Amount 
Requested 

2023 
Amount 
Requested 

Total 
Contract 
Amount 

Column 
Rehab $99,000 $26,000 $100,000 N/A N/A N/A $225,000 
MobileX 
USA $70,000 N/A $33,434 N/A N/A N/A $103,434 
Pharmacy 
Systems Inc. $4,551,145 $1,000 N/A N/A N/A N/A $4,552,145 
The Greeley 
Company New N/A $950,000 N/A N/A N/A $950,000 



4 
 

Vendor 
Name 

Existing 
Amount/New 

2019 
Amount 
Requested 

2020 
Amount 
Requested 

2021 
Amount 
Requested 

2022 
Amount 
Requested 

2023 
Amount 
Requested 

Total 
Contract 
Amount 

Verge 
Solutions, 
LLC $144,838 N/A $53,590 N/A N/A N/A $198,428 
Vistelar, 
LLC New N/A $450,000 N/A N/A N/A $450,000 
Wisconsin 
Diagnostic 
Laboratories, 
Inc $99,900 N/A $28,000 N/A N/A N/A $127,900 
Evaluation 
Research 
Services, 
LLC $361,800 $450 N/A N/A N/A N/A $362,250 
The Medical 
College of 
Wisconsin $87,360.70 N/A $30,000 N/A N/A N/A $117,360.70 
*UW 
Milwaukee $332,548 $256,998 $222,617 $208,519 $252,317 N/A $1,272,999 
TOTAL $5,746,592 $284,448 $1,867,641 $208,519 $253,317 $0 $8,359,517 

 
*Denotes a Vendor whose funding is supported by a grant. 

 
 
 

  
       
Mary Jo Meyers, Director 
 Department of Health and Human Services 
Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: February 27, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute 2019 Purchase-of-Service Contract 

Amendments and 2020 Contracts with a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the 

Behavioral Health Division for the Provision of Adult and Child Mental 

Health Services and Substance Use Disorder Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2020 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocations will allow BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient 

Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and support services to adults with mental 

health and/or substance use disorders and children with serious emotional disturbances. 

Purchase-of-Service Contracts 

Adult Service Contracts 

Impact Alcohol & Other Drug Abuse Services, Inc. - $127,353 

The Vendor is a Community Access Point that currently does screening and assessments for 

CARS consumers and matches the recommended services to the individual’s needs. BHD is 

asking for an additional $127,353 to extend the current agreement until June 30, 2020. The total 

contract amount for 2019-2020 will be increase from $636,765 to $764,118. 

M&S Clinical Services, Inc. - $136,925 

The Vendor is a Community Access Point that currently does screening and assessments for 

CARS consumers and matches the recommended services to the individual’s needs. BHD is 

14REVISED



2 
 

asking for an additional $136,925 to extend the current agreement until June 30, 2020. The total 

contract amount for 2019-2020 will be increased from $684,925 to $821,850. 

 

Wisconsin Community Services, Inc. - $78,878 

The Vendor is a Community Access Point that currently does screening and assessments for CARS 

consumers and matches the recommended services to the individual’s needs. BHD is asking for an 

additional $78,878 to extend the current agreement until June 30, 2020. The total contract amount 

for 2019-2020 will be increase from $394,390 to $473,268. 

 

Wisconsin Community Services - $250,000 

BHD’s Community Linkages and Stabilization Program (CLASP) is an extended crisis 

stabilization program designed to assist persons with ongoing behavioral health concerns through 

individual support in the community provided by a state-certified Peer Specialists. BHD is 

requesting an increase of $250,000 related to Medicaid pass-through funding for this program. 

The new 2020 contract amount is $529,714. 

 

Our Space, Inc. - $129,540 

Our Space, Inc. provides participants an introduction to the Family Drug Treatment Court and 

continued engagement by offering support to the participants from someone who has been 

through the process and can provide guidance, mentoring and role modeling. BHD is 

requesting an additional $43,180 per year, over a three-year period in funding for this vendor to 

add an additional Peer Specialist to the Family Drug Treatment Court program. The three-year 

contract amount will be $129,540. 

 

 

 

Year Amount Term 

Year 1 $43,180.00 10/1/19 - 9/30/20 

Year 2 $43,180.00 10/1/20 - 9/30/21 

Year 3 $43,180.00 10/1/21 - 9/30/22 

 

 

 

 

Youth Services Contracts 

 

AJA Enterprises, LLC DBA AJA Counseling Center - $370,372 

The Vendor provides Care Coordination, REACH, and screening/assessment services for the 

Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting an 

additional $370,372 for 2020. The one-year contract amount will be increased to $1,770,372. 

 

St. Charles Youth & Family Services, Inc. - $2,971,711 

Contractor oversees the implementation of the Supported Employment Program (SEP) and 

monitors fidelity of the SEP pilot program for OYEAH enrolled youth interested in working. The 

funding is from a five-year SAMHSA grant. BHD is requesting $2,971,711 over a five-year 

period. The five-year contract amount will be $2,971,711.00. 



3 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Fiscal Summary 

 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below. 

 

Vendor Name 

Existing 

Amount/New 

 

2020 

Amount 

Requested 

 

2021 

Amount 

Requested 

2022 

Amount 

Requested 

2023 

Amount 

Requested 

Total Contract 

Amount  

AJA Enterprises, LLC $1,400,000 $370,372 N/A N/A N/A $1,770,372 

*Impact Alcohol & 

Other Drug Abuse 

Services, Inc. $636,765 $127,353 N/A N/A N/A $764,118 

*M&S Clinical 

Services, Inc $684,925 $136,925 N/A N/A N/A $821,850. 

*Our Space, Inc. New $43,180 $43,180 $43,180 N/A $129,540 

*St. Charles Youth 

and Family Services New $571,531 $598,694 $603,022 $599,242 $2,971,711 

*Wisconsin 

Community Services, 

Inc. $394,390 $78,878 N/A N/A N/A $473,268 

Wisconsin 

Community Services, 

Inc. $279,714 $250,000 N/A N/A N/A $529,714 

Total $3,395,794  $1,578,239  $641,874  $646,202  $599,242  $7,460,573  

 

*Denotes a Vendor whose funding is supported by a grant. 
 

 

 

    

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 

Year Amount Term 

Year 1 $571,531 10/1/19 - 9/30/20 

Year 2 $598,694 10/1/20 - 9/30/21 

Year 3 $603,002 10/1/21 - 9/30/22 

Year 4 $599,242 10/1/22 – 9/30/23 

Year 5 $599,242 10/1/23 - 9/30/24 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 

Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication  

DATE: January 23, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 

Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 

Requesting Authorization to Execute a 2020 Fee-for-Service Agreement with 

a Value in Excess of $100,000 for the Behavioral Health Division for the 

Provision of Child Mental Health Services and Substance Use Disorder 

Services 

Issue 

Wisconsin Statute 51.41(10) requires approval for any contract related to mental health 

(substance use disorder) with a value of at least $100,000.  No contract or contract adjustment 

shall take effect until approved by the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board.  Per the statute, 

the Director of the Department of Health and Human Services is requesting authorization for 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to execute mental health and substance use 

contracts for 2020. 

Background 

Approval of the recommended contract allocation projections will allow 

BHD/CARS/Wraparound/Inpatient Hospital to provide a broad range of rehabilitation and 

support services to adults with mental health and/or substance use disorders and children with 

serious emotional disturbances. 

Fee-for-Service Agreements 

Butterflies Home for Teen Girls - $115,000 

This vendor provides Group Home Care Services for Wraparound Milwaukee Program serving 

children/youth and their families. BHD is requesting $115,000 for the 2020 contract. The one 

year contract amount will be $115,000.  

15



2 
 

Fiscal Summary 

 

The amount of spending requested in this report is summarized below.  

 

Vendor Name 
Existing 

Amount/New 

 
 
 

2020 Amount 
Requested 

Total 2020 
Contract Amount 

Butterflies Home for 
Teen Girls New $115,000 $115,000 

  $115,000 $115,000 
*Denotes a Vendors whose funding is supported by a grant 

 

 

 

 

  
       

Mary Jo Meyers, Director 

Department of Health and Human Services 

Cc: Maria Perez, Finance Chairperson 



COUNTY OF MILWAUKEE 
Behavioral Health Division Administration 

Inter-Office Communication 

 DATE: January 23, 2020 

TO: Thomas Lutzow, Chairperson – Milwaukee County Mental Health Board 

FROM: Mary Jo Meyers, Director, Department of Health and Human Services 
Approved by Michael Lappen, Administrator, Behavioral Health Division 

SUBJECT: Report from the Director, Department of Health and Human Services, 
Requesting Authorization to Amend 2020 Contracts with the State of 
Wisconsin for Social Services and Community Programs. 

Issue 

Sections 46.031 and 49.325 of the Wisconsin Statutes require counties to execute annual 
contracts with the State Departments of Health Services (DHS) and Children and Families (DCF) 
for Social Services and Community Programs.  The contracts, referred to as Community Aids, 
provide State and Federal funding for county services to persons with mental illness, 
disabilities, and substance abuse problems, and to juvenile delinquents and their families as 
mandated by State and/or Federal law.   

Background 

In July 2019, the Milwaukee County Mental Health Board approved the 2020 Budget including 
$40,655,019 in State grant funding for adult mental health and AODA services. Most of those 
funds are included in the CY 2020 State and County Grant Award Contract through the 
Wisconsin Department of Health Services.  Several grants, including the IV Drug Abuse 
Treatment Grant and the State Targeted Response (STR) to the Opioid Crisis funds, are 
contracted separately.  This is funding that supports community mental health and AODA 
services. 

Below is a summary of anticipated State Community Aids revenue at Milwaukee County BHD 
for CY 2020 and how it compares with budgeted amounts. 

16



2020 State Social Services Contract  February 2020 
P a g e  | 2 
 

 

CY 2020 State/County Social Services/Community Program 

Final Revenue Allocation Compared to the 2020 Budget 

 
2020 BHD 

Budget 
2020 Final State 

Allocation 
 Variance from 

Budget 
 

Basic County Allocation 

DHS Community Aids         $22,336,586      $22,336,586                               -    

     

Earmarked Revenues         
Community Mental Health 
Allocation        $7,780,317        $7,780,317    - 

Mental Health Block Grant                $685,914  $685,914             - 

TANF $4,394,595 $4,394,595  - 

Urban Youth Prevention - $50,000  $50,000 
Substance Abuse Block Grant & 
Treatment Services            $2,431,021  $2,431,021                                     -  

Total State/County Contract 
Revenue          $37,628,433      $37,678,433                      $50,000 

     

Other Grant Revenues     

Coord Specialty Care (FEP) - $548,832  $548,832 

SABG Supplemental $1,093,959 $1,093,959  - 

IV Drug Treatment Grant                $510,000             $510,000    -    

MHBG Supplemental $609,966 $654,966  $45,000 

SOR / STR Opioid $729,346 $729,346  - 

SOR / STR II Expansion $83,315 $248,371  $165,056 

Subtotal Other Revenues $3,026,586 $3,785,474  $758,888 

     

Grand Total $40,655,019 $41,463,907  $808,888 

 
Recommendation 
 
It is recommended that the Mental Health Board authorize the Director, Department of Health 
and Human Services, to execute the 2020 Social Services and Community Programs contracts 
from the State Departments of Health Services and Children and Families, and any addenda to 
those contracts, for the County to obtain the State Community Aids revenue.  The 2020 Social 
Services and Community Programs contracts provide total revenue of $41,463,907. 

  
_______________________________ 
Mary Jo Meyers, Director 
Department of Health and Human Services 



17







18










	Item 3
	Item 5
	Item 6
	Item 8
	Item 10
	Item 12
	Item 13
	Item 14
	Item 15
	Item 16
	Item 17
	Item 18



